HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 28, 2005
1:39 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:39:14 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Kelly

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Davidson, Director, Legislative Auditor, Legislative

Audit Division; Sam Kito I1l, Chair, Legislative Liaison
Council, Al aska Professional Design Council; Scott d ark,
Notary Adm nistrator, Ofice of Lieutenant Governor; Brian
Westad, Intern, Ofice of Lieutenant Governor; Sgt. Tim

Birt, Juneau, Al aska State Troopers, Departnment of Public
Saf ety, Juneau; Anne Carpeneti, Assistant Attorney General,
Legal Services Section, Crimnal D vision, Departnent of Law

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Representative Vic Kohring; Janmes Steele, Mnager, Ofice of
Chil dren Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services,
Wasilla; Terry Schoenthal, Anmerican Society of Landscape
Architects, Anchorage

SUMVARY

HB 35 An Act extending the term nation date of the State
Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers,
and Land Surveyors; and providing for an effective
dat e.

HB 35 was HEARD and HELD in Conm tt ee.

House Fi nance Committee 1 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



HB 66

An Act maki ng appropriations for the operating and
capital expenses  of the state's integrated
conprehensi ve nental health program and providing
for an effective date.

HB 66 was POSTPONED.

HB 67 An Act nmaki ng appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnent, for
certain prograns, and to capitalize funds; making
appropriations under art. I X sec. 17(c),
Constitution of the State of Alaska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing
for an effective date.

HB 67 was POSTPONED.

HB 97 An Act relating to the authority to take oaths,
affirmations, and acknow edgnents in the state, to
not ari zati ons, to verifications, to
acknow edgnents, to fees for issuing certificates
wth the seal of the state affixed, and to
notaries public; and providing for an effective
dat e.

HB 97 was HEARD and HELD in Conm ttee.

HB 99 An Act relating to controll ed substances regarding
the crimes of manslaughter, endangering the
wel fare of a child, and msconduct involving a
controlled substance; and providing for an
effective date.

HB 99 was HEARD and HELD in Conm ttee.

HB 134 An Act meking supplenental, capital, and other
appropriations, and reappropriations; anendi ng
appropriations; maki ng appropriations to
capitalize funds; making an appropriation under
art. IX sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of
Al aska, from the constitutional budget reserve
fund; and providing for an effective date.

HB 134 was POSTPONED.

1:39:35 PM

#HB66

#HB67

HOUSE BILL NO. 66

An Act nmaking appropriations for the operating and
capital expenses of t he state's i ntegrated
conprehensi ve nental health program and providing for
an effective date.

House Fi nance Committee 2 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



HOUSE BILL NO. 67

An Act maki ng appropriations for the operating and | oan
program expenses of state governnment, for «certain
pr ogr ans, and to capitalize f unds; maki ng
appropriations under art. 11X, sec. 17(c), Constitution
of the State of Alaska, fromthe constitutional budget
reserve fund; and providing for an effective date.

Co-Chair Chenault advised that HB 66 and HB 67 would be
POSTPONED until a latter date.

#HB35
HOUSE BILL NO_ 35

An Act extending the termnation date of the State
Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers, and
Land Surveyors; and providing for an effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE VI C KOHRI NG, (TESTI FI ED VI A TELECONFERENCE)
MAT- SU, stated that HB 35 would extend the term nation date
for the Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers and
Land Surveyors (AELS) adding an additional five years. The
current termnation date is June 30, 2005. If the
Legi sl ature takes no action to extend the board, it would go
into a one-year phase out to conclude admnistrative
operations, followed by term nation.

Representative Kohring pointed out that the board consists
of 11 nenbers appointed by the Governor:

. Two civil engineers,

. Two | and surveyors,

. One m ni ng engi neer,

. One el ectrical or mechani cal engineer,

. One engi neer from another branch of the profession
of engi neering,

. Two architects,

. One | andscape architect, and

. One public nmenber.

Representative Kohring highlighted that the board' s purpose
is to adopt regulations, oversee exam nations, suspend,
revoke or refuse the issuance of new |icenses, and issue
|icenses to practice to architects, engineers, and |and
surveyors who neet the standards of education and training
det erm ned necessary by the board.

Representative Kohring pointed out that Legislative Audit

Division perforned a Novenber 1, 2004 board audit, as
required by statute and recommended that the board be

House Fi nance Committee 3 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



extended to June 30, 2009. The Division found the board to
be operating in the public interest by effectively
regul ati ng individuals who hold thenselves out to the public
as registered architects, engineers, |and surveyors, and
| andscape architects. Furthernore, the D vision found that
the board denonstrated an ability to conduct business in a
satisfactory manner, has been effective in devel oping
regul ations, has ensured that |icensees are conpetent and
consistently practice wthin requirenents and ethica
standards of their respective professions.

Representative Kohring pointed out that there are a couple
of anmendnents proposed by the organization, one of which
adds an additional nenber. He requested soneone present
address those anendnents.

SAM KITO Il1l, CHAIR, LEG SLATIVE LIASION COW TTEE, ALASKA
PROFESSI ONAL DESI GN COUNCI L, stated that the Council fully
supports the legislation and the extension of the sunset for
the Board so that they can continue to neet professional
st andar ds.

1:46: 34 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze renenbered legislation in the late
1990’ s, which encouraged the addition of | andscape
architects. He asked if an analysis had been done on the

benefits of adding that group.

M. Kito pointed out the basic benefit to date is limted as
there are only 30 licensed |andscape architects statew de.
He noted that they perform duties separate from architects
or civil engineers. He added that the addition of the
| andscape architects to the board would help by adding
anot her voting nenber, changing it from10 to 11 nenbers.

1:47:56 PM

In response to Vice-Chair Stoltze, M. Kito pointed out that
they do not have information available that identifies
projects they got with including the |andscape architecture
| i cense.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch inquired about the audit report.

PAT DAVI DSCON, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATIVE AUDI TOR, LEG SLATI VE
AUDIT DIVISION explained that an audit was conducted and
recommended that the date be extended to 2009. She not ed,
based on the results of the audit on the Board of
Regi stration for Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors,
the Division recomrends the termnation date of June 30,
2005 be extended until June 30, 2009.

House Fi nance Committee 4 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



Ms. Davi dson pointed out that during the |ast sunset review,
Division reconmmended that the Legislature nodify statutes
allowing the Board to inplenent continuing professional
education requirenents. VWhile the Legislature nmade that
statutory change, the board has not inplenented the
requirenent. The Division recommends that either the board
i npl ement a conti nui ng professional education requirenment or
the Legislature consider nodifying the statutes from a
perm ssive programto a mandatory one.

Ms. Davidson continued, the second recommendation involves
the continuing evolution of the engineering profession.
Al aska recognizes the core disciplines of civil, chem cal
el ectrical and nechanical engineering as well as mning and
petrol eum engineers. Oher states have recognized other
specialties or sub-disciplines. In the report, the D vision
recoomended that the Board, in conjunction wth the
prof essional society or the University of Al aska, conduct a
conprehensive study regarding the public benefits and
related costs associated wth recognizing additional
engi neering specialties in Alaska’ s |icensing structure.

Ms. Davi dson added that the Legislature should al so consi der
maki ng the | andscape architect a full voting nenber of the
boar d.

Representative Wyhrauch asked +the inportance of the
continuing education requirenment for civil engineers and
architects.

Ms. Davi dson stated that what the Audit Division |ooks at is
why should the State becone involved wth [|icensing of
professionals for public health, safety and welfare. No
matter the level of training, the sanme |evel of protection
IS necessary. Al t hough, not perfect, continuing education
is one of the min nmechanisns used for naintaining
pr of essi onal standards.

1: 53: 10 PM

Representative Holm comented on the |andscape architect
pr ocess. Ms. Davidson explained that the division has not
done extensive work in regards to the |andscape architects.
It has been a progression and those represented on the board
consist of all categories. Landscape architects have about
t he sanme nunber of |icensees and by statute, there nust be a
menber on that board.

Representative Hol mvoi ced concern with the legislation. He
stated he has been a horticulturist in Alaska for the past
50-years. Al aska does not have an association of Al askan
nurserynen. Because of that, there is not a “platforni from
which to build that a horticulturist can use. Those that
conme fromother parts of the world, bring information, which

House Fi nance Committee 5 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



often does not translate in Al aska. He cautioned that
| andscaping in Alaska is peculiar. It is not |ike building,
given the particulars. There are no books that adequately
explain what types of foliage grow in which places in
Al aska.

Representative Holm stressed this is a major problem  Sone
| andscape architects specify products that will not grow in
Al aska. Because of that peculiarity, Representative Holm
suggested that they do not have a place on the board until

there is a horticultural set up that can address the State
by regions.

Co-Chair Meyer interjected that there was soneone on |ine
who could testify regardi ng these concerns.

1: 58: 00 PM

Representative Croft inquired if all professions should be
noved to sone sort of continuing education requirenment. M.
Davi dson stated that was not the intent. She indicated that
it is inmportant to determ ne how the public is being served
and/ or maintaining the quality of the profession.
Conti nui ng professional education is a common way to |ead
professionals into continued conpetency.

Representative Croft questioned if the Legislature should be
deciding that information for the professions. He asked if
it would be nore appropriate to defer to the boards. Vs.
Davi dson stated that is up to the Legislature.

2:00: 38 PM

Representative Wyhrauch agreed that it is inportant. He
asked about |legislative jurisdiction of overseeing of a
pr of essi onal board. He pointed out that a nenber of the

public often hires professional expertise because of their
| ack of know edge about a situation. He wanted sone degree
of confort, knowing that there is a board that provides
oversight and a code of ethics for the oversight. He asked
for an update regarding what the board does to regulate
their own nenbers.

M. Kito pointed out that |l|ast year, there had been
| egi slation that authorized the board to adopt regulations
in continuing education. That legislation cane at the
urging of the surveyors. The architects are close behind
them recognizing the inportance of continuing education.
The national scale has adopted continuing education
standards. He admtted that there are professions that are
not quite ready for the standard and |listed various boards,
whi ch have national standards.

2:04: 51 PM

House Fi nance Committee 6 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



Represent ati ve Hawker asked if there was an anendnent before
the Committee. Co-Chair Meyer responded there 1is no
amendnent at this tine.

TERRY SCHOENTHAL, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), AMERI CAN
SOCIEY OF LANDSCAPE ARCHI TECTS, ANCHROAGE, conmented on
testinony by Representative Holm acknow edging the validity
of his points. M. Schoenthal highlighted areas which his
group operates, noting that they rely heavily upon State
nurseries and the University. He pointed out that the State
Board is fundanentally there for the purposes of health,
safety and welfare of the State’'s citizens. There is not a
pl anned | aboratory for testing for Al askan plants; however
the reason for licensing is to deal with health and safety
concerns. There are issues associated with specific designs
such as advi ce on drai nage and stone water nmanagenent.

2: 07: 28 PM

M. Schoenthal pointed out other areas including highway
desi gn. He stressed the inportance of having the
under standing of plant materials and the inpact they have on
the site distance. These are issues essential for the work
of the board nenbers.

M. Schoenthal stated that the board constitutes about 30

| i censed professionals statew de. He thought that the
nunbers could double in the next decade. Li ke other
professionals on the board, it brings forward national

trends and changes, which influence how the requirenents are
changed. He nmentioned continuing education and offered to
answer questions of the Commttee

2.09:27 PM

Representative Hol mstated that he was not agai nst | andscape
architects, however, he pointed out how ill infornmed that
industry is. He stressed that the professionals comng from
schools in other states have information does not
“translate” well in Al aska. Representative Holm voiced

concern that a standard for conpetency would be put in
pl ace.

Representative Holm nentioned an exanple of the depth of
topsoil necessary for lawns in various sections of Al aska.
He enphasized that if horticultural know edge is not at
hand, it is difficult to inplenment specifications that make
sense.

2:12: 00 PM

M. Schoenthal agreed in part wth Representative Holm
poi nting out that there are issues with nultiple conditions

House Fi nance Committee 7 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



statewi de. He acknowl edged that sinple availability is also
a concern and stressed that the role of the board is nore
related to the statewde health, welfare and risk factors
versus materials used in | andscape design.

2:13: 23 PM

Representative Holm acknow edged that conpetency is an
i nportant reason to have a professional board.

Vice-Chair Stoltze renenbered a tine there was not a | ot of

statewi de regulatory function. He wanted “nake certain”
that the decision for a board was headed in the right
di rection. He noted constituent’s conplaints regarding
“things” that do not nake sense.

2:16:31 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the bill wuld be held in

Committee to address anendnents.
HB 35 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.

2:17: 21 PM

#HB97
HOUSE BI LL NO. 97

An Act relating to the authority to take oaths,
affirmations, and acknow edgnents in the state, to
notarizations, to verifications, to acknow edgnents, to
fees for issuing certificates wth the seal of the
state affixed, and to notaries public; and providing
for an effective date.

SCOTT CLARK, NOTARY ADM NI STRATOR, OFFICE OF LI EUTENANT
GOVERNOR, voiced support for the legislation and asked that
M. Westad, intern for Lt. Governor Leman sunmmarize it.

BRI AN WESTAD, | NTERN, OFFI CE OF LI EUTENANT GOVERNCR, st ated
that HB 97 identifies changes in the Al aska Statutes, which
have not been updated since 1961. These changes have been
suggested by the Al askan Notaries working together with Lt.
Governor Leman’s office.

M. Westad referenced the handout: Notary Statute Conparison
— CSHB 97 (JUD). (Copy in File). The conparison is
arranged in sections highlighting the qualifications, terns,
fees, bonds, comm ssion types, comm ssion revocation, notary
data and non-comm ssi oned notari es.

M. Westad provided an overview of the handout.

2:21: 23 PM

House Fi nance Committee 8 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



M. Westad continued with the overvi ew.

2:22:11 PM

Representative Croft was confused how the procedure for
revocati on changes. He referenced the proposed “shared”
responsibility wwth the Lt. CGovernor.

M. Cdark responded that Section 68, Page 16, provides the
Lt. CGovernor the authority to revoke or suspend the
comm ssion based on grounds for that subsection. If the
status for the notary changes and they no | onger qualify for
the comm ssion, that would constitute grounds. An extrene
case would be a notary convicted of a felony during the
course of their conmm ssion. Failure to conmply with the
chapter gives the Lt. Governor the authority to revoke or
suspend.

M. dark pointed out that the #3 category for “inconpetence
or malfeasance” is nore nebul ous. All the changes are
fairly technical and relate to the legislation itself.

M. dark noted that Section 44.50.069 deals with situations

where the public mght call and conplain about a notary. In
that situation, instead of the Lt. Governor having the
authority to revoke the commission, it would go through the
Ofice of Admnistrative hearings. He thought that

situation could be less defined and would require sone
degree of investigation.

2:24: 59 PM

Representative Croft referenced that section and asked about
the final analysis and determ nation of a violation in the
chapter. He stated that Section 44.50.068 surprised himin
that it repeats Section 44.50.069 and gives the Lt. Governor
the sole power. He pointed out that |anguage would not
requi re a hearing.

M. dark acknow edged that was correct and that it was not
intended to “rob” the notaries of their right to appeal. He
thought it mght be appropriate to add a subsection to
Section 44.50.068 that would clarify that the notary woul d
have the authority to appeal any decision nade by the Lt.
Gover nor.

Representative Croft thought that the two provisions should
be conbined into one section. As it appears now, the two
seem to be on different tracks. M. dark agreed and
suggested that Representative Croft could make an anmendnent,
which their office would support. The current situation is
quite cunbersone. He suggested that if an anendnent is
created, it should approach the situation by letting the Lt.

House Fi nance Committee 9 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



Gover nor suspend or revoke and then using the adm nistrative
hearing officer to becone the appeal nechani sm

2:28:16 PM

Representative Croft comented it should be a matter of
suspending. M. dark agreed.

Representati ve Hawker agreed with Representative Croft and
t hought that an anendnent should be brought forward before
the bill was noved from Conm ttee.

Representative Weyhrauch recommended that if there is going
to be an appeal, it should be in a separate section applying
to other provisions. M. Cark asked if direction was being
given for the Ofice of the Lt. Governor to draft an
anmendnent .

Representati ve Wyhrauch asked about the qualifications of
the notary. He referenced Section 8, Page 8, which
stipulates the qualifications of those not having been
incarcerated for a felony wthin 10 vyears before the
comm ssion takes effect. He asked if a person would qualify
if they were convicted of a felony but had not been
incarcerated. M. Cark did not knowif it was possible.

2: 30: 32 PM

Representative Wyhrauch commented that if you choose a
notary, you choose soneone that can be trusted. He thought

that a probation felon should be reconsidered. M. dark
replied that it had not occurred to them that sonmeone coul d
be accused of a felony and not be incarcerated. He

recommended establishing |anguage that would take both
situations into consideration. M. Cark agreed it could be
addressed at the sane tinme as the other anendnent.

2:31: 50 PM

Co- Chair Meyer pointed out that the application fee had not
been changed; he asked if it had been the sane cost since
1961. M. Cdark responded that fee had been raised from $20
dollars to $40 dollars in 1990. The Lt. Governor did not
proposed that a change be made to that nunber.

In response to Representative Weyhrauch’s comments regarding
the fees, M. Cark explained that the $40 dollar fee was
reasonabl e conpared with other states.

Representative Weyhrauch questioned the cost to buy a bond

in 1990 as conpared to now. M. Cdark did not know, but
guessed that they had not increased.

House Fi nance Committee 10 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



Representative Wyhrauch asked if a notary test was

required. M. Cdark replied that the test is no |onger
requi red; when researching the statutes, there was no
statutory authority to make it nmandatory. The changes

proposed to HB 97 intends to expand the testing program to
make it self guided through the website.

Representative Wyhrauch asked it was required that the
notaries keep a | og. M. Cdark replied that |aw does not
require it, but notaries are strongly urged to keep a notary
journal . He added that it is an essential elenent to the
act of notarization. It is not nentioned in the statutes or
in the bill and is a contentious subject. There has been a
| ot of objection to a nmandatory journal. He comented that
a journal serves the public’'s best interest as it provides a
record of inportant information.

2:36: 07 PM

Representative Hawker referenced the $40 dollar fee and
asked if the State was receiving sufficient revenue to run
the cost of the program with that anount. M. dark
bel i eved so.

Co-Chair Meyer interjected that since the legislation is in
the process of raising the fees, that section should be
“bunped up” a little. M. Cark responded that if the fee
was raised, the bill mght not pass. He stressed that
passage is inportant and that the O fice of the Lt. Governor
had | ooked at the fee schedul e cl osely.

2:37:46 PM

Representative Hol masked if it mght be called a tax on the
notary. He inquired about the nunber of notaries. M.
Clark stated that their office processes about 3,000
comm ssions each year and that there are around 12,000
active notaries.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if any industry dom nates the
notary conm SSions. M. Cdark replied that the banking
i ndustry is a comon business; however, all businesses find
it convenient to have notaries on staff.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if banks offer the service as a
conveni ence or as a service. M. dark responded that nost
banks offer notary services free of <charge to their
cust oners.

Representative Croft referenced the $40 dollar charge and
asked if that fee had been too high in 1990. He suggested
that the question should be if the anpbunt generates enough
noney to cover the services and asked if it was conparable
to other states.

House Fi nance Committee 11 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer stated he would not suggest an increase if
costs were being net.

Representative Wyhrauch thought it was inportant to
scrutinize those costs closely and requested that nore
informati on be nmade available. M. Cark offered to provide
that information

Co-Chair Meyer requested that M. dark work with Suzanne
Cunni ngham in his office to provide a commttee substitute
addressing the itens of concern.

Co-Chair Chenault inquired if there was a |log of how many
tinmes a notary uses their seal each year. M. Cark replied
that without a notary journal, there is no way to track that
type of activity.

Co- Chair Chenault questioned the fiscal note request. M.
Clark advised that the fees referenced are not related to
the notaries or the public. They are related to a speci al
type of certificate, attached to docunents going to foreign
countries. Foreign governnents often wll not accept
docunents from any other country wthout that type of
attached certificate. There are between 2,000 and 3, 000 of
those per year and that is what the fiscal note is based
upon.

Co-Chair Chenault asked what nost of the certificates dea
W th. M. Cdark explained that they verify that the
notaries really are notaries.

2:43: 59 PM

HB 97 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.

#HBO9
HOUSE BILL NO. 99

An Act relating to controlled substances regarding the
crinmes of manslaughter, endangering the welfare of a
child, and m sconduct involving a controll ed substance;
and providing for an effective date.

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTION, CRIM NAL DI VISION, DEPARTMENT OF LAW sunmarized
what HB 99 woul d acconpli sh.

. It provides that it wuld be a manslaughter
conviction for manufacturing or delivering neth in
violation of drug laws, AS 11.71, if a person dies
as the direct result of ingesting the drug.

House Fi nance Committee 12 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



. It also provides that there is no additional
conparable nental state required for the State to
prove the case. Maki ng the conduct specifically
hom ci de does not operate new ground in the | aw

2:46: 20 PM

. The bill creates a new form of child endanger nent
in the 1% degree by providing that it would be a
Class C felony to manufacture or attenpt to
manuf acture neth in violation of the State’s drug
laws in a building, especially if children under
18 use the building as a dwelling.

. The bill changes the penalty for possessing neth
anphetam ne in an organic solution. R ght now, it
is a Cass C felony to possess the substance and
it is a Cass A felony to possess a precursor to
the substance with the intent to manufacture it.
It is a known fact that people possess the neth
anphetamne in an organic solution in order to
extract the powered neth.

Co- Chair Chenault noted an on-going case in Fairbanks where
a neth lab was found in a notel. M. Carpeneti stated that
was correct.

Representati ve Wyhrauch commented on the vastness of the

problem nationally with neth. He pointed out that “neth
anphetam ne” was not in the title of the bill and asked if
the bill was directed solely to that drug.

Ms. Carpeneti explained that two of the sections dea
directly with neth anphetam nes but the bill does have a
broader context. The mansl aughter provision is for

distribution or manufacturing of any drug in violation to
the State’s drug | aws.

Representative Wyhrauch asked if current crimnal |[|aw
all ows seizure of a building or car if it is involved in the
manuf acturi ng of neth anphetam nes. M. Carpeneti said she
woul d research that and get back to the Conm ttee.

Representati ve Wyhrauch asked if it was correct that neth
anphetam ne could not be nmnade w thout using Sudafed. Ms.
Carpeneti deferred to an online expert.

Representati ve Weyhrauch inquired about the possibility of
vapors of the neth anphetam ne being absorbed into carpets,
wal I|s and sheetrock of the lab and outside areas. Ms.
Carpeneti understood that was correct and that it could al so
perneate airwaves of an entire buil ding.

House Fi nance Committee 13 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



Representati ve Weyhrauch asked if the intent of |egislation
was that crimnal prosecution and application would address
any effect that the neth anphetam ne reached. M. Carpeneti
advised that it clarifies if the drug is manufactured in a
building with reckless disregard to the danger of any child
in that whole structure, that person would be prosecuted in
first degree.

Representative Weyhrauch commented that reckless disregard
is a high standard. Ms. Carpeneti responded that it is the
hi ghest, “knowingly” is the second highest, *“reckless
di sregard” the next and “crim nal negligence” the |ast.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch di scussed “casting a wi der net” for
|l owering that to a conparable nental state. He asked if
that change would create a fiscal inpact on the prison
system Ms. Carpeneti thought that nost nmeth lab arrests
would be able to prove reckless disregard because of the
danger ousness of the substance.

Representati ve Weyhrauch revisited the Sudafed question. He
asked if it was a critical conponent of neth anphetam ne,
would it then be sinpler to outlaw Sudafed sales in Al aska.
Ms. Carpeneti noted that there are legitimte uses of
Sudafed. There are several bills in the Legislature at this
time that could regulate the sale of that type of chem cal

2:56:45 PM

Representative Holm nentioned a bill passed a couple of
years ago that dealt with mandatory cleanup of these sites.
He added that HB 149 deals with the neth issue.

SGT. TIM BIRT, ALASKA STATE TROOPERS, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
SAFETY, JUNEAU, testified in support of passage of HB 99.
Sgt. Birt commented on the common trend of the neth labs in
the State of Al aska. There is a conplete disregard from
those that manufacture neth anphetam ne for their safety as
well as the safety of those around them The manner in
which the chemicals are stored creates situations that are

extrenely hazardous. He stressed that whether it 1is
intentional or not, a dangerous situation is created with
the chemcals that are used. In the actual neth |abs, the

chemcals are wusually found from the floor level up to
counter top, the areas in which children spend nost of their
tinme.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked for a description of the conpounds.

Sgt. Burt explained that in Al aska, there are two primary
met hods of manufacturing nmeth anphetam ne.

. Using lithiumnetal and Sudafed
. Usi ng i odi ne and red phosperous

House Fi nance Committee 14 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired about the anmounts of Sudafed
used. Sgt. Birt explained that in the manufacturing
process, the nore chemcals put into the front, the nore
finished product that results. What has been seen in the
“box labs” or “nom and pop” labs is that they take a few
boxes of Sudafed and nanufacture grans and/or ounces of
met h. For every one unit of Sudafed in the front end, the
result is % unit of neth. Some retailers now |[imt the
nunber of boxes of Sudafed, which can be sold over the
count er.

3:03: 32 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked how nmany neth | abs have been busted
in Alaska in the last two to five years. Sgt Birt responded
that those nunbers are available but that he did not have
themat this neeting. In 2004, in the Mat-Su valley, there
were 50 to 60 neth | abs busted.

Co-Chair Chenault pointed out that the three fiscal notes
all indicate a zero fiscal inpact, which surprised himgiven
the size of the problemstatew de. He requested that the up
front anticipated costs be submtted to the Commttee.

3: 06: 04 PM

Representative Hol mnoted that Al aska has no restrictions on
t he purchase of Sudaf ed. He asked if there should be |aws
in place to limt the sale of any ephedrine. Sgt. Birt
commented that Sudafed actually serves legitinmate purposes.
He agreed it should be regulated and restricted, which m ght
help with the problem O her states that have restricted
the sales have experienced a dramatic decrease in the neth
| abs. That drop happened alnost imediately wth the
passage of their |egislation.

Representative Holm understood that if ephedrine cane off
the market, there are other options for those that need it

and could be purchased over the counter. Sgt. Birt
acknowl edged that there are other conpositions of Sudafed
such as a gel cap or cough syrup. 1In other states, only the

actual cold tablets are regul ated.

3:09: 04 PM

Representative Hol m questioned if that would be possible in
Alaska. Sgt. Birt replied that controlling Sudafed tablets
woul d definitely have an inpact on the neth | abs.

Representative Holm recommended that the Commttee | ook
further into that possibility.

3:09: 36 PM

House Fi nance Committee 15 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



JAMES STEELE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), MANAGER
OFFI CE OF CHI LDREN SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SCCI AL
SERVI CES, WASILLA, testified in support of HB 99. He
comented that he cones into contact with the issues of neth
| abs not only in his role as manager of children’s services
but also as a deputy fire chief. M. Steele stressed that
Mat-Su has the fasted growi ng population and the fastest
growi ng nunber of drug labs in the State.

M. Steele pointed out that two years ago, the local drug
teans seized 30 |abs; last year, that nunber increased to
51. He noted that there is a critical problem when cooking
meth in that all surfaces becone contam nated through the
funmes. Toxic fumes and poi sonous gases pose an extrene risk
for anyone exposed.

3:12:17 PM

Last year, the Ofice of Children Services took custody of 8
active | abs. There were workers that transported kids who
had to be decontam nated because of their exposure to the
net h. He stressed that children’s normal behavior, places
them at risk for contam nates of the nmeth and dangerous
chemcals. Currently, his office receives about 40 nonthly
reports related to sone aspect of neth production. This is
a huge growi ng concern. M. Steele offered to answer
questions of the Commttee.

3:13:48 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked how often are firenmen, the first
responders to the neth lab scenes. M. Steele acknow edged
that it does occur, however, often tinmes the fire departnent

does not find out until later in the process. Sonet i mes
there are explosions. He pointed out that they have
responded to car fires with nobile labs. It does occur, but

he did not know t he nunber.

3:15: 22 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the bill would be HELD in order to
nmerge it with other bills with a simlar concern

3:16: 27 PM

Representative Wyhrauch hoped that the legislation would
not affect honebrew, w ne or beer making.

HB 99 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.
#

ADJ QURNVENT

House Fi nance Committee 16 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



The neeting was adjourned at 3:18 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 17 02/28/05 1:39 P. M



